
  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: October 17, 2019 

TIME: 6:30 p.m. 

PLACE: 2nd Floor Commission Chambers 
 Lenawee County Courthouse 
 Adrian, Michigan 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the September 19, 2019, Meeting [ACTION]  .........................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

(1) #19-12 — Woodstock Township [ACTION]  ....................................................................  9 

(2) #19-13 — Cambridge Township [ACTION]  ...................................................................  25 

(3) #19-14 — Rollin Township [ACTION]  ...........................................................................  33 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) 

(1) #19-42 — Riga Township [ACTION]  .............................................................................  43 

(2) #19-43 — Riga Township [ACTION]  .............................................................................  61 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business — Existing Land Use Survey  ..........................................................................  71 

b. New Business — None 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

The next meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission is scheduled for November 21, 2019 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 1 

mailto:gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us


This page is intentionally blank. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 2 



  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, September 19, 2019 

Old Lenawee County Courthouse ● 2nd Floor Commission Chambers ● Adrian, Michigan 

 Members Present: Ms. Rebecca Liedel, LCPC Chair; Mr. Bruce Nickel; Mr. Ralph Tillotson, Le-
nawee County Commission; and Mr. Dale Witt 

 Members Absent: Mr. Bob Behnke, Education Representative; Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee 
County Commission; and Mr. Keith Dersham, LCPC Secretary 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary, and Dave Pixley, Palmyra 
Township Planning Commission 

Item 1 Call to order. The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Chair Liedel. Those in attend-
ance rose and joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2 Public comment — None 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda. Staff submitted the 9/19/19 meeting agenda for approval. 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Tillotson, to approve the Sep-
tember 19, 2019, meeting agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes. Staff submitted the 8/15/19 special meeting minutes for approval. 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Liedel, to approve the August 
15, 2019, special meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

(1) #19-09 | Palmyra Township. Commissioners reviewed various proposed text 
amendments throughout the Palmyra Township Zoning Ordinance. Staff summarized 
his report, highlighting various concerns, and advising Commissioners to recommend 
disapproval with comments of the proposed text amendments to the Palmyra Town-
ship Board as currently proposed. Further revisions are needed (see the listing of 
comments/suggestions in the staff report). For example, sections containing addi-
tional development standards for certain uses that do not exist are cited. 

A motion was made by Comm. Witt, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur with 
the staff advisement to recommend disapproval with comments of the proposed text 
amendments as currently proposed (see the staff report and these minutes). The mo-
tion passed by majority vote with Comm. Tillotson abstaining; he was concerned 
about the effect of a disapproval recommendation. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
September 19, 2019, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

(2) #19-10 | Fairfield Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning to 
‘Local Commercial (C-1)’ of an approximately 9-acre portion of a property (ID# FA0-
110-2285-00) along M-52 in Section 3 (T8S-R3E) of the Township. Staff summarized 
his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with comments of the 
proposed rezoning, noting the importance of clearly describing the portion of the 
parcel to be rezoned in the township board’s motion as well as other suggestions 
(see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Tillotson to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the proposed 
rezoning to the Fairfield Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed 
unanimously. 

(3) #19-11 | Franklin Township. Commissioners reviewed proposed text amend-
ments to the Franklin Township Zoning Ordinance regarding: (a) accessory building 
heights in residential districts, (b) self-service storage facilities, and (c) sign regula-
tions. Staff summarized his report, noting various issues pertaining to the regulations 
proposed for the self-service storage facilities and signs and providing separate ad-
visements regarding each set of amendments: 

(a) Recommend approval with comments of the proposed amendment pertain-
ing to the maximum allowable height of accessory buildings in residential dis-
tricts (see the staff report). 

(b) Recommend disapproval with comments of the proposed amendment per-
taining to self-service storage facilities, as currently written; the approval sta-
tus of the amendments is unclear and development standards should be 
considered. (see the staff report). 

(c) Recommend disapproval with comments of the proposed amendment per-
taining to sign regulations, as currently written; further changes to the pro-
posed regulations should be considered, especially those affected by Reed et 
al. v. Town of Gilbert, Arizona et al. (see the staff report). 

Comm. Tillotson voiced his general concerns regarding sign standards. Regulations 
are needed, but often go too far and become overly restrictive in his opinion. He 
cited the City of Tecumseh’s enforcement of its sign code as an example. Comm. 
Nickel announced that he will abstain from voting because he is the Zoning Adminis-
trator for Franklin Township. 

The following motions were made and passed: 

(a) A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to 
concur with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of 
the proposed amendment pertaining to the maximum allowable height of 
accessory buildings in residential districts (see the staff report and these 
minutes). The motion passed by majority vote with Comm. Nickel abstaining. 

(b) A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to 
concur with the staff advisement to recommend disapproval with comments 
of the proposed amendments pertaining to self-service storage facilities as 
currently written (see the staff report and these minutes). The motion passed 
by majority vote with Comm. Nickel abstaining. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 4 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
September 19, 2019, Meeting Minutes Page 3  
 

(c) A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Liedel, to 
concur with the staff advisement to recommend disapproval with comments 
of the proposed amendments pertaining to sign regulations as currently writ-
ten (see the staff report and these minutes). The motion passed by majority 
vote with Comm. Nickel abstaining. 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) 

(1) #19-28 | Rome Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement for a 
property (ID #RM0-108-3055-00) in Section 8 (T6S-R2E) of the township. Staff sum-
marized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with comments 
of the agreement provided that the applicant considers acting on the suggestion (see 
the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Tillotson, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Rome Township Board (see the staff report and these minutes). 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) #19-29 | Rome Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement for a 
property (ID #RM0-103-3850-00) in Section 3 (T6S-R2E) of the township. Staff sum-
marized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with comments 
of the agreement provided that the applicant considers acting on the suggestion (see 
the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Rome Township Board (see the staff report and these minutes). 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(3) #19-30 | Rome Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement for 
properties (ID #RM0-102-3900-00 and ID #RM0-102-4800-00) in Section 2 (T6S-R2E) 
of the township. Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend 
approval with comments of the agreement provided that the applicant considers act-
ing on the suggestions, including submitting the parcel information for ID #RM0-102-
4800-00 (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Rome Township Board (see the staff report and these minutes). 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(4) #19-31 | Rome Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement for a 
property (ID #RM0-113-2805-00) in Section 13 (T6S-R2E) of the township. Staff sum-
marized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with comments 
of the agreement provided that the applicant considers acting on the suggestion (see 
the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Rome Township Board (see the staff report and these minutes). 
The motion passed unanimously. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 5 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
September 19, 2019, Meeting Minutes Page 4  
 

(5) #19-32 | Blissfield Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed partial termi-
nation of an existing agreement for a property (either ID #BL0-218-2925-00 or ID 
#BL0-218-2950-00) in Section 18 (T7S-R5E) of the township. Staff summarized his re-
port advising Commissioners to recommend disapproval of the application, noting 
the conflicting documentation regarding the parcel intended for termination (see the 
staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with 
the staff advisement to recommend disapproval of the PA 116 application to the 
Blissfield Township Board (see the staff report and these minutes). The motion 
passed unanimously. application 

(6) #19-33 | Cambridge Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property (ID #CA0-127-4925-00) in Section 27 (T5S-R2E) of the township. Staff 
summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with com-
ments of the agreement provided that the applicant considers acting on the sugges-
tions (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with 
the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agree-
ment to the Cambridge Township Board (see the staff report and these minutes). The 
motion passed unanimously. 

(7) #19-34 | Cambridge Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for properties (ID #CA0-127-4600-00 and ID #CA0-127-3950-00) in Section 27 (T5S-
R2E) of the township. Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recom-
mend approval with comments of the agreement provided that the applicant consid-
ers acting on the suggestions (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Cambridge Township Board (see the staff report and these 
minutes). The motion passed unanimously. 

(8) #19-35 | Cambridge Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property (ID #CA0-127-2600-00) in Section 27 (T5S-R2E) of the township. Staff 
summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with com-
ments of the agreement provided that the applicant considers acting on the sugges-
tions (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Cambridge Township Board (see the staff report and these 
minutes). The motion passed unanimously. 

(9) #19-36 | Cambridge Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property (ID #CA0-127-2300-00) in Section 27 (T5S-R2E) of the township. Staff 
summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with com-
ments of the agreement, provided that the applicant considers acting on the sugges-
tions, including the exclusion of the dwelling and any associated structures (see the 
staff report). 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 6 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
September 19, 2019, Meeting Minutes Page 5  
 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with 
the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agree-
ment to the Cambridge Township Board (see the staff report and these minutes). The 
motion passed by majority vote with Comm. Tillotson voting no; in his opinion, the 
dwelling should be included in the application if that is the wish of the applicant. 

(10) #19-37 | Cambridge Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property (ID #CA0-127-2050-00) in Section 27 (T5S-R2E) of the township. Staff 
summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with com-
ments of the agreement provided that the applicant considers acting on the sugges-
tions (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Cambridge Township Board (see the staff report and these 
minutes). The motion passed unanimously. 

(11) #19-38 | Cambridge Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property (ID #CA0-122-2450-00) in Section 22 (T5S-R2E) of the township. Staff 
summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with com-
ments of the agreement, provided that the applicant considers acting on the sugges-
tions (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Witt, and seconded by Comm. Tillotson, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Cambridge Township Board (see the staff report and these 
minutes). The motion passed unanimously. 

(12) #19-39 | Deerfield Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property (ID #DE0-212-3850-00) in Section 12 (T7S-R5E) of the township. Staff 
summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval with com-
ments of the agreement provided that the applicant considers acting on the sugges-
tions (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Tillotson, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Lenawee County Commission (see the staff report and these 
minutes). The motion passed unanimously. 

(13) #19-40 | Ridgeway Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for properties (ID #RD0-207-4760-00 and ID #RD0-208-3050-00) in Sections 7 and 8 
(T6S-R5E) of the township. Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to 
recommend approval with comments of the agreement, provided that the applicant 
considers acting on the suggestions (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Witt, and seconded by Comm. Tillotson, to concur 
with the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 
agreement to the Ridgeway Township Board (see the staff report). The motion 
passed unanimously. 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 7 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
September 19, 2019, Meeting Minutes Page 6  
 

(14) #19-41 | Ridgeway Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for properties (ID #RD0-207-3550-00 and ID #RD0-207-3725-00) in Section 7 (T6S-
R5E) of the township. Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recom-
mend approval with comments of the agreement, provided that the applicant con-
siders acting on the suggestions, including the exclusion of the dwelling and any as-
sociated structures (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Witt, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur with 
the staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agree-
ment to the Ridgeway Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed by 
majority vote with Comm. Tillotson voting no; in his opinion, the dwelling should be 
included in the application if that is the wish of the applicant. 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

Item 6 Other Business 

a. Old Business — None 

b. New Business — Staff provided Commissioners with a series of existing land use maps 
(utilizing assessing data) for the County (initially developed for another project). They 
should be useful in municipal master plans and other planning efforts. 

Item 7 Public Comment — None 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment — None 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, Recording Secretary 
 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 8 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-12 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: October 14, 2019 

 Proposal: ‘Local Commercial (C-1)’ rezoning request in Woodstock Township 

Purpose 

The purpose of the rezoning request is to allow for “computer repair/programming” according to the 
applicant (see the ‘Zoning Amendment Form’ and the ‘Rezoning Worksheet Form’).1 

Location and Size of the Property 

Location – The subject property (WD0-133-4755-00) is located at 16175 Addison Road in Section 33 
(T5S-R1E) of Woodstock Township (see Figures 1, 4a, and 4b). 

Size – The subject property has an area of approximately 3 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The current use of the subject property is ‘private storage’ according to the Town-
ship (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). Properties to the north and south are also utilized for ‘private 
storage’. Agriculture is the use identified for properties to the east and west. 

Future Land Use – Woodstock Township’s future land use map places the subject property and sur-
rounding parcels in an area recommended for ‘Agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

Current Zoning – The subject property and surrounding parcels are located in an ‘Agricultural (AG)’ 
district (see Figure 3). 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Public Road/Street Access – The subject property fronts on Addison Road, a county primary road-
way, to the north and the west (see Figure 4b). 

Public Water and Sewer – Neither public sanitary sewer service or pubic water service is available on 
the subject property and there are no plans to provide those services. 

Environmental Constraints – There are no known environmental constraints, according to the Town-
ship (see the ‘Rezoning Worksheet Form’). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Woodstock Township Planning Commis-
sion recommends disapproval of the proposed rezoning (see the background information). 

CZC Staff Analysis – Woodstock Township has a Zoning Plan which includes the following criteria upon 
which a rezoning request must be considered: 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 9 



Page 2 CZ #19-12 
 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

No. The subject property is located in the midst of a large area recommended for ‘Agricultural’ 
uses (see Figure 2). The Zoning Plan equates ‘Local Commercial (C-1)’ zoning to ‘Commercial’. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

No. The subject parcel is located in the midst of an ‘Agricultural (AG)’ zoning district and sur-
rounded by properties utilized for either agriculture or private storage (see Figure 3). 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. It is unlikely that public services and facilities would be negatively impacted. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

No. The introduction of a single commercially zoned property in this part of Woodstock Town-
ship would constitute spot zoning given that the recommended uses in the general area are ‘Ag-
ricultural’. 

CZC Staff Analysis – Staff agrees with the Woodstock Township Planning Commission’s recommenda-
tion to disapprove the rezoning request. 

Please note that the attorney for the applicant has also proposed adding the following to the listing of 
allowable conditional uses in the ‘Agricultural (AG)’ district (Sec. 4.3): 

4.3.21 Light Assembly and Software Programing operations for the assembly from prefabricated 
parts of electronic devices and products, computer hardware and support systems or the 
processing or assembly of parts for the production of finished computer equipment provided 
that: all activities take place within an enclosed building; that no manufacturing or retail 
soles be conducted on the premises; that the operation employ no more than ten (10) per-
sons on site; that operations be conducted between 7:00 am and 7:00 pm and no signage be 
erected or posted in any location other than on the building itself together with other rea-
sonable conditions established by the planning commission. 

This approach is certainly preferable to the creation of a spot zone and should be explored further. At 
the same time, staff is concerned whenever the zoning ordinance is amended to benefit a particular 
property owner (and/or any tenants). Given this concern, it may be more prudent to create a condi-
tional use category that would allow a very small non-retail commercial business to be established as an 
accessory use within an existing building. 

CZC Staff Recommendation – Based upon this analysis, staff ad-
vises the Lenawee County Planning Commission to recommend DIS-
APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the proposed ‘Local Commercial (C-
1)’ rezoning to the Woodstock Township Board: 

 The proposal would create a spot zone. 

 This creation of a conditional use is worth exploring further, 
including the suggestions of LCPC staff. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the township. 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 10 



Page 3 CZ #19-12 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 2 
Township Future Land Use 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 11 



Page 4 CZ #19-12 
 

Figure 3 
Township Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 
USDA Aerial Photograph 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 12 



Page 5 CZ #19-12 
 

Figures 4b 
Google Aerial Photograph 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 13 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 14 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 15 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 16 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 17 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 18 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 19 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 20 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 21 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 22 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 23 



This page is intentionally blank. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 24 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-13 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: October 14, 2018 

 Proposal: Text Amendments to the Cambridge Township Zoning Ordinance  
regarding ‘Nuisances Per Se’ 

The Cambridge Township Planning Commission developed various text amendments Sec. 26-610 to 
make the penalty for violating the zoning ordinance a civil infraction rather than a misdemeanor.  

Analysis and Recommendation 

CZC Staff Analysis – Other municipalities have changed the penalty for violating the zoning ordinance 
from a misdemeanor to a civil infraction. As this is a legal decision—and assuming that legal counsel has 
reviewed the new approach—staff has no comment on the details of the amendment. Proposed amend-
ments are displayed in this color (see below). 

ARTICLE V. – ADMINISTRATION 

DIVISION 1. – GENERALLY 

. . . 

Sec. 36-610. - Nuisance per se; abatement. 

Uses of land and dwellings, buildings or structures including tents and trailer coaches used, 
erected, altered, razed or converted in violation of any provision of this chapter are hereby 
declared to be a nuisance per se. The court shall order such nuisance abated and the owner 
and/or agent in charge of such dwelling, building, structure, tent, trailer coach or land shall 
be adjudged guilty of maintaining a nuisance per se. Anyone violating the provisions of this 
chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. The imposition of any sentence shall not exempt 
the offender from compliance with the requirements of this chapter. 

Sec. 36-610 – Violation - Penalty 

Uses of land and dwellings, buildings or structures including tents and trailer coaches used, 
erected, altered, razed or converted in violation of any provision of this chapter are hereby 
declared to be a nuisance per se. The court shall order such nuisance abated and the owner 
and/or agent in charge of such dwelling, building, structure, tent, trailer coach or land shall 
be adjudged responsible for maintaining a nuisance per se the fines and penalties for which 
are as follows: 

A. Violation of this Ordinance is a municipal civil infraction, for which the fine shall be 
not less than $50.00 nor more than $500.00 for the first offense and not less than 
$100.00 nor more than $2,500.00 for subsequent offenses, in the discretion of the 
Court, and such fine shall be in addition to all other costs, attorney fees, damages, 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 25 



Page 2 CZ #19-13 
 

expenses, and other remedies as provided by law. For purposes of this section, 
“subsequent offense” means a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance commit-
ted by the same person for the same property within twelve (12) months of a previ-
ous violation of the same provision of this Ordinance for which said person admitted 
responsibility or was adjudicated to be responsible, provided, however, that offenses 
committed on subsequent days within a period of one week following the issuance of 
a citation for a first offense shall be considered separate first offenses. 

B. In addition to pursuing a municipal civil infraction proceeding pursuant to subsection 
A hereof, the Township may also instate an appropriate action in a court of compe-
tent jurisdiction seeking injunctive, declaratory, or other equitable relief to enforce or 
interpret this Ordinance or any provision of the Ordinance. 

C. All remedies available to the Township under this Ordinance and Michigan law shall 
be deemed to be cumulative and not exclusive. 

D. Any use of land that is commenced or conducted, any activity, or any building, item 
or structure that is erected, moved, used, place, reconstructed, razed, extended, en-
larged, altered, maintained, or changed, in violation of any provision of this Ordi-
nance is also hereby declared to be a nuisance per se. 

E. Each and every day during which a violation of this Ordinance shall exist shall be 
deemed to be a separate offense. 

F. Any person, firm or entity that assists with or enables the violation of this Ordinance 
shall be responsible for aiding and abetting, and shall be considered to have violated 
the provision of this Ordinance involved for which such aiding and abetting occurred. 
Furthermore, any attempt to violate this Ordinance 
shall be deemed a violation of the provision of this 
Ordinance involved as if the violation had been 
successful or completed. 

. . . 

CZC Staff Recommendation – Based upon the above analysis, 
staff advises the Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL of 
the proposed text amendment to the Cambridge Township Board. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the township. 

 

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 26 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 27 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 28 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 29 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 30 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 31 



This page is intentionally blank. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 32 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-14 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: October 14, 2019 

 Proposal: ‘Rural Residential (RR)’ rezoning request in Rollin Township 

Purpose 

The purpose of the rezoning request is to create “home site[s] for six (6) homes” according to the appli-
cant (see the ‘Zoning Amendment Form’).1 

Location and Size of the Property 

Location – The subject property (RL0-130-3600-00) is located at 18776 Forrister Road in Section 30 
(T6S-R1E) of Woodstock Township. The pertinent portion of the property fronts on the roadway (see Fig-
ures 1, 4a, and 4b). 

Size – The pertinent portion of the subject property has an area of approximately 20 acres according to 
the applicant (see the ‘Zoning Amendment Form’). 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The current use of the subject property is ‘residential and farming’ according to 
the Township (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). The use of properties to the north and east is identi-
fied as ‘agriculture’ and the use of properties to the south is identified as ‘rural residential’. The uses of 
properties to the west are identified as a mix of ‘residential and agricultural’. 

Future Land Use – Rollin Township’s future land use map places the subject property, and surrounding 
land on the north side of Forrister Road, in an area recommended for ‘Agricultural & Open Space’ uses 
(see Figure 2). Land on the south side of the road (i.e., the north shore of Horseshoe Lake) is located in 
an area recommended for ‘Low Density Residential’ uses. 

Current Zoning – The subject property and surrounding land on the north side of Forrister Road are 
located in an ‘Agricultural (AG)’ zoning district (see Figure 2). Land on the south side of the road (i.e., the 
north shore of Horseshoe Lake) is already zoned ‘Rural Residential (RR)’. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Public Road/Street Access – The subject property fronts on the north side of Forrister Road, a county 
primary roadway (see Figure 4b). 

Public Water and Sewer – Neither public sanitary sewer service or pubic water service is available on 
the subject property and there are no plans to provide those services. 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 33 



Page 2 CZ #19-14 
 
Environmental Constraints – There are no known environmental constraints, according to the Town-
ship (see the ‘Rezoning Worksheet Form’). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Rollin Township Planning Commission 
recommends approval of the proposed rezoning (see the background information). 

CZC Staff Analysis – Rollin Township has a Zoning Plan which includes the following criteria upon 
which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. The subject property, and surrounding land on the north side of Forrister Road, is located in 
an area recommended for ‘Agriculture & Open Space’ uses (see Figure 2). The Township’s Zon-
ing Plan equates ‘Rural Residential (RR)’ zoning to ‘Agriculture & Open Space’. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. The land on the south side of Forrister Road is located in a ‘Rural Residential’ district (see 
Figure 3). Furthermore, ‘Low Density Residential’ uses are recommended for that land, which 
equates to Single Family Residential (R-1 and R-2) zoning in the Township’s Zoning Plan. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. It is unlikely that public services and facilities would be negatively impacted. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. Large-lot residential development is already located along this portion of Forrister Road. 
The ‘Rural Residential (RR)’ district has a required minimum lot size of at least 1 acre. 

CZC Staff Analysis – Staff agrees with the Rollin Township Planning Commission’s recommendation to 
approve the rezoning request. LCPC staff further recommends that the extent of the rezoning should be 
further clarified: 

 The email and map provided by the Township identify the portion of the property to be rezoned 
as the north side of the Forrester Road frontage to a depth of 600 feet (see the background in-
formation). Unfortunately, the exact location of the centerline of the roadway is unclear. This 
should be identified through surveying or Lenawee County Road Commission records. 

 Matching the rezoning exactly to the new residential lot(s) that will be created for the six pro-
posed dwellings is advisable. 

 It would also make sense to include 18748 Forrister Road (RL0-130-3710-00) in the rezoning as it 
will be completely surrounded by a ‘Rural Residential (RR)’ district if the rezoning is approved. A 
new public hearing must be noticed and held in order to rezone the additional property. 

CZC Staff Recommendation – Based upon this analysis, staff ad-
vises the Lenawee County Planning Commission to recommend AP-
PROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the proposed ‘Local Commercial (C-1)’ 
rezoning to the Rollin Township Board as long as further clarification 
of its extent (as described in the staff report) is considered. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the township. 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 34 



Page 3 CZ #19-14 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 2 
Township Future Land Use 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 35 



Page 4 CZ #19-14 
 

Figure 3 
Township Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 
USDA Aerial Photograph 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 36 



Page 5 CZ #19-14 
 

Figures 4b 
Google Aerial Photograph 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 37 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 38 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 39 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 40 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 41 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 42 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | FA #19-42 

 Applicant(s): Larry L. and Rebecca D. Sayler 
10633 Berkey Highway 
Blissfield, MI 49228 

 Date: October 11, 2019 

 Local Government: Riga Township 

 Purpose: Enrollment application 

 Location: The subject property (ID #RG0-121-1450-00) is located in Section 21 of the Town-
ship (T8S, R5E) and fronts on Weston Road (see Figure 1). 

 Description: The subject property has an area of approximately 24 acres according to the ap-
plicant (approximately 26 acres according to Lenawee County GIS), with 24 
acres cultivated for cash crops. The average gross annual income for the prop-
erty is $297.15/acres, more than the $200/acre minimum required by MDARD. 
There are no structures (see Figure 3). 

 Term: 30 years is the proposed term. 

 Future Land Use: The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the subject proper-
ties at the edge of an area recommended for ‘Intensive Agricultural’ uses (see 
Figure 2). 

 Staff Comments: The application contains various errors/omissions which need to be addressed: 

 Question #15: ”2 or more persons having a joint or common interest in 
the land” should be checked. 

Staff Advisement: Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commis-
sion to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the PA 116 application to 
the Riga Township Board, provided that the applicant considers the comments/ 
suggestions listed in the staff report. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the applicant/township. 

  

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 43 



Page 2 FA | #19-42 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2 
County Future Land Use 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 44 



Page 3 FA | #19-42 
 

Figure 3 
USDA Aerial Photograph 

 
 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 45 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 46 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 47 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 48 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 49 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 50 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 51 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 52 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 53 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 54 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 55 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 56 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 57 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 58 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 59 



This page is intentionally blank. 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 60 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | FA #19-43 

 Applicant(s): Larry L. and Rebecca D. Sayler 
10633 Berkey Highway 
Blissfield, MI 49228 

 Date: October 11, 2019 

 Local Government: Riga Township 

 Purpose: Enrollment application 

 Location: The subject property (ID #RG0-120-3050-00) is located in Section 20 of the Town-
ship (T8S, R5E) and fronts on Berkey Highway (see Figure 1). 

 Description: The subject property has an area of approximately 41 acres according to the ap-
plicant (approximately 42 acres according to Lenawee County GIS), with 40 
acres cultivated for cash crops. There is a residence and 3 other buildings lo-
cated on the property (see Figures 3a and 3b). 

 Term: 30 years is the proposed term. 

 Future Land Use: The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the subject proper-
ties at the edge of an area recommended for ‘Intensive Agricultural’ uses (see 
Figure 2). 

 Staff Comments: The application contains various errors/omissions which need to be addressed: 

 Question #15: ”2 or more persons having a joint or common interest in 
the land” should be checked. 

The LCPC routinely suggests that any dwelling (and any associated structures) be 
excluded from an application in case it is sold separately at some point in the fu-
ture, saving the applicant from possible financial penalties. 

Staff Advisement: Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commis-
sion to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the PA 116 application to 
the Riga Township Board, provided that the applicant considers the comments/ 
suggestions listed in the staff report. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the applicant/township. 

  

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 61 



Page 2 FA | #19-43 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2 
County Future Land Use 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 62 



Page 3 FA | #19-43 
 

Figure 3a 
USDA Aerial Photograph 

 

Figure 3b 
Google Aerial Photograph 

 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 63 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 64 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 65 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 66 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 67 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 68 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 69 



10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 70 



 

120 West Michigan Avenue • Jackson, Michigan  49201 •  (517) 788-4426 •  (517) 788-4635 
 

 To: Lenawee County Planning Commissioners 
Other Interested County and Municipal Officials in Lenawee County 

 From: Grant E. Bauman 
Principal Planner 

 Date: October 14, 2019 

Subject: Property Assessment Data for Lenawee County 

Staff provided information on existing 
land use across the Region 2 Area for 
the August 2019 R2PC meeting in fur-
therance of the 2017-2021 edition of 
the Region 2 Planning Commission 
Comprehensive Economic Development 
Strategy (see the inset). 

It was explained that a first step in 
identifying cultural and recreational re-
sources is to map existing land use pat-
terns utilizing property assessment cat-
egories (i.e., use types). Most cultural 
and recreational resources have an ex-
empt status, making them easier to 
identify. It was further noted that the 
property assessment data can also be 
utilized by counties and municipalities 
as they create economical and up-to-
date existing land use maps for inclu-
sion in master plans. This memo pro-
vides more detailed information on the 
land use pattern found in Lenawee 
County. 

Before describing the land use pattern found in the County during the summer of 2019, it is im-
portant to recognize some limitations to the data: 

 Some portions of the County are unmapped. For example, the cities of Adrian and Te-
cumseh maintain their own property GIS databases, making that information unavaila-

Goal #2 of the Comprehensive Economic Devel-
opment Strategy (CEDS) is: 

 Provide opportunities to support glob-

ally competitive business environment 

strategies 

Strategy C, designed to accomplish the goal, is: 

 Identify and map unique cultural and 

Regional recreational resources which 

add to quality of life and placemaking, 

thereby aiding economic develop-

ment, including, but not limited to, 

arts and cultural institutions, agricul-

ture, parks, trails, and other recrea-

tion facilities, and natural resources 

And Action #3, designed to fulfill the strategy, 
is: 

 The mapping of cultural and recre-

ational resources 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 71 



10/14/19 Memo Page 2 

ble for this analysis. Nor are lakes or some properties utilized for roads, railroads, ceme-
teries, and parks included in the analysis. It is important to note, however, that taken 
together, the two cities, lakes, and other unmapped properties account for less than 3% 
of the assessed acreage in Lenawee County. 

 Some of the acreage contained in the commercial assessment category would normally 
be included other land use categories. For example, the Michigan International Speed-
way (MIS), golf courses, and other recreational businesses are most often included in an 
institutional land use category and apartment complexes would be included a residen-
tial land use category. 

 At least some of the properties utilized for roads, railroads, cemeteries, and parks are 
not included in the institutional land use category due to local assessment practices. 

 A small number of assessed acres are not associated with a traditional land use cate-
gory. It is important to note that taken together, however, those properties only ac-
count for 0.04% of the assessed acreage. 

 Finally, residential, commercial, and industrial land uses are often described by their 
character and/or density (e.g., single-family vs multiple-family residential, local/general 
vs highway service commercial, light vs heavy industrial, etc.). That is not possible using 
assessment data. 

Recognizing the caveats listed above, the land use pattern 
found in Lenawee County during the summer of 2019 can be 
described as follows: 

 Agriculture comprised approximately 73% of assessed 
acreage (see Figures 2 and 4). 

Farmland is found in every mapped municipality, in-
cluding cities and villages as well as townships. 

 Approximately 19% of assessed acreage can be de-
scribed as low intensity development (see Figures 2 
and 5). 

Low intensity development—defined as residential lots 
having an area of 2 or more acres— is found in every 
mapped municipality, including cities and villages as 
well as townships. 

 High intensity development comprised approximately 5% of assessed acreage (see Fig-
ures 2 and 3): 

o Compact residential uses were attributed to approximately 3% of assessed acre-
age (see Figures 2 and 5). 

Compact residential uses—defined as residential lots having an area of less than 
2 acres—are found in every mapped community but tend to predominate in the 
Clinton-Tecumseh-Adrian Urbanizing Corridor and the Irish Hills-Devils Lake Rec-
reational Area as well as the various cities and villages (see Figures 1, 2, and 5). 

Land Use 

Agricultural 

Agricultural 73% 

Low Intensity Development 

Large Lot Residential 19% 

High Intensity Development 

Compact Residential 3% 

Commercial <1% 

industrial >1% 

Institutional (Exempt) 

Institutional (Exempt) 3% 

Other 

Other 0% 

 100% 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 72 



10/14/19 Memo Page 3 

o Commercial uses comprised to more than 1% of the assessed acreage (see Fig-
ures 2 and 6). 

Commercial uses (i.e., stores, restaurants, offices, etc.) are found in every 
mapped community but tend to predominate in the Clinton-Tecumseh-Adrian Ur-
banizing Corridor and the Irish Hills-Devils Lake Recreational Area as well as the 
various cities and villages (see Figures 1, 2, and 6). 

o Industrial uses were attributed to less than 1% of the assessed acreage (see Fig-
ures 2 and 7). 

Industrial uses are found in every mapped city and village as well as many of the 
townships but tend to predominate in the Clinton-Tecumseh-Adrian Urbanizing 
Corridor and the Irish Hills-Devils Lake Recreational Area as well as the various 
cities and villages, (see Figures 1, 2, and 7). 

 Approximately 3% of the assessed acreage could be attributed to various types of non-
commercial institutional uses (see Figures 2 and 8). 

Institutional uses (e.g., state game areas, college and university facilities, etc.) are found 
in every mapped community but tend to predominate in the Clinton-Tecumseh-Adrian 
Urbanizing Corridor and the Irish Hills-Devils Lake Recreational Area as well as the vari-
ous cities and villages and in the vicinity of Lake Hudson (see Figures 1, 2, and 8). 

 Other uses accounted for slightly more than 0% of the assessed acreage (see Figure 2). 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 73 



10/14/19 Memo Page 4 

 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 74 



10/14/19 Memo Page 5 

 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 75 



10/14/19 Memo Page 6 

 

 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 76 



10/14/19 Memo Page 7 

 
 

10/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 77 




